Authorised by J Najman. 493A Ipswich Rd, Annerley QLD 4103

QCAA 2020 QUEENSLAND ELECTION PLATFORM

HEALTH WISE



About QCAA

The Queensland Coalition for Action on Alcohol (QCAA) is committed to reducing alcoholrelated harm. QCAA identifies and prioritises actions needed to reduce alcohol harms and improve the health and wellbeing of Queenslanders and ensures that these actions are raised with decision makers.

QCAA currently has 14 leading health and community service agencies as our members:

These are:

- Australian Drug Foundation Queensland
- Australian Medical Association Queensland
- Cancer Council Qld
- Collaboration for Alcohol Related Developmental Disorders
- Drug and Alcohol Nurses Australasia
- Drug ARM
- Drug Awareness & Relief Foundation (Australia)
- Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (FARE)
- Lives Lived Well
- Royal Australian College of Surgeons (Queensland)
- Salvation Army
- Queensland Alcohol and Drug Research and Education Centre
- Queensland Homicide Victims Support Group
- Queensland Network of Alcohol and other Drug Agencies

For further information about QCAA, visit www.qcaa.org.au or contact the QCAA secretariat at contactus@qcaa.org.au

Contents

About QCAA1
Introduction4
What do Queenslanders think about alcohol and what do they support?
Paying the price of alcohol6
Our 5 Point Plan to reduce alcohol related harms7
Section 1 - Improving community safety and amenity7
1. Retain the Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence policy and expand the policy to end the sale of all take-away alcohol at 10pm7
2. Enforce responsible service of alcohol monitoring compliance checks by the Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation at point of delivery for alcohol products sold online
Section 2 - Managing availability, price and promotion9
3. Spearhead advocacy efforts at the Ministerial Drug and Alcohol Forum to introduce a nationally consistent minimum unit price on alcohol9
4. Tighten restrictions on alcohol advertising on government buildings and implement a complete ban immediately10
SECTION 3 - Promoting healthier communities11
5. Develop and initiate a comprehensive, evidence-based community campaign on the direct link between alcohol consumption and chronic disease (cancer, mental health and heart disease)
References

Introduction

Alcohol has a complex role in our society. While some Queenslanders abstain from alcohol altogether¹, alcohol is widely reported as being part of the cultural identity of Australians to the point where not consuming alcohol can be viewed as 'unAustralian'².

Examples of this unhealthy relationship with alcohol can be seen in intoxication as a rite of passage into adulthood, peer pressure to consume alcohol, the lauding of alcohol consumption by the media and advertising, the belief that alcohol and celebration are intrinsically linked, and the widespread availability of cheap alcohol products.

While many may regard this cultural norm with alcohol as positive and relatively harmless, the broader social, health, and economic impacts are often underestimated.

Harmful consumption of alcohol can lead to devastating social costs, such as increased risk of motor vehicle crashes and other causes of injury, pedestrian fatalities, crime, work accidents, street and family violence and sexual assault³. Alcohol is a significant contributor to family violence and child maltreatment, involved in up to 67 per cent of family violence incidents reported to police and up to 47 per cent of child abuse cases in Australia⁴.

Around 1 in 3 people exceed the current National Health and Medical Research Council guidelines to reduce single occasion risk of harm⁵, but people often do not recognise that this is damaging to their health. 72 per cent of Queensland drinkers are comfortable with how much they drink, yet 50 per cent drink to get drunk⁶. Alcohol's link to cancer, cardio-vascular disease, mental health problems and many chronic diseases is still poorly understood by the wider community⁷. While most Australians associate illnesses such as cirrhosis of the liver (76%) and liver cancer (72%) with alcohol use, fewer Australians are aware of the link between alcohol use and heart disease (54%), stroke (41%), mouth and throat cancer (29%) and breast cancer (16%). A small number of people (5%) are unaware that alcohol is linked with any of the conditions mentioned above⁸.

But this isn't just a social or health issue, it's an economic issue. The latest assessment by the Chief Health Officer estimates that the financial cost of alcohol consumption to the Queensland economy is \$2.2 billion, with \$400 million spent on healthcare, \$720 million in productivity losses including absenteeism, \$310 million in home production losses, \$320 million in crime and \$440 million in road transport injuries⁹.

A lot of progress has been made. The *Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence* measures introduced in 2016 addressed have been evaluated as a success, allowing Queenslanders to have the freedom to go to local entertainment precincts and not to worry about being exposed to alcohol related anti-social behaviour and violence¹⁰. Queenslanders want these measures so they can enjoy their time with friends and family, rather than be concerned about the safety of themselves and those around them¹¹.

The overwhelming majority of Queenslanders believe that we have a problem with alcohol, and that more needs to be done to address alcohol-related harms¹². QCAA shares their concerns. We want Queenslanders to live happy, healthy, safe and productive lives that contribute in a positive way to the social fabric of Queensland society.

This election, the QCAA on behalf of its members is asking all political leaders and parties to put the health of Queenslanders first by supporting evidence-based alcohol policies. Our 5 Point Plan builds on the existing efforts and responses to prevent and minimise the social, health and economic harms of alcohol.

What do Queenslanders think about alcohol and what do they support?¹³



OF QUEENSLANDERS BELIEVE AUSTRALIA HAS A PROBLEM WITH ALCOHOL



OF QUEENSLANDERS THINK MORE NEEDS TO BE DONE TO REDUCE ALCOHOL RELATED HARM



OF QUEENSLANDERS BELIEVE POLITICAL PARTIES SHOULD NOT BE ABLE TO RECEIVE DONATIONS FROM THE ALCOHOL INDUSTRY



OF QUEENSLANDERS DRINK TO GET DRUNK



OF QUEENSLANDERS HAVE BEEN AFFECTED BY ALCOHOL-RELATED VIOLENCE



ONLY 10% KNOW THAT FOUR STANDARD DRINKS IS THE MAXIMUM TO MINIMISE SHORT TERM HARM



OF AUSTRALIANS BELIEVE THAT PUBS, CLUBS AND BARS SHOULD CLOSE AT 3AM OR EARLIER



OF QUEENSLANDERS BELIEVE THAT GOVERNMENTS SHOULD ENSURE THAT ALCOHOL PRODUCTS ARE NOT SOLD BELOW THE PRICE OF BOTTLED WATER OR SOFT DRINKS



OF QUEENSLANDERS BELIEVE THERE ARE PLACES WHERE ALCOHOL ADVERTISING SHOULD BE BANNED

PAYING THE PRICE OF ALCOHOL





15 AUSTRALIANS DIE FROM ALCOHOL EVERY DAY

1300 ANNUAL DEATHS ASSOCIATED WITH ALCOHOL IN QLD

53 AVERAGE ANNUAL ROAD DEATHS ASSOCIATED WITH ALCOHOL IN QLD 2 PREVENTABLE CAUSE OF HOSPITALISATIONS AND DEATH IN AUSTRALIA

AUSTRALIANS OVER 14 DRINK AT LEVELS THAT PUT THEM AT RISK OVER THEIR LIFETIME

200⁺ DISEASES AND INJURY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH ALCOHOL USE

> ALCOHOL INCREASES RISK FOR:



RIS

- CIRRHOSIS OF THE LIVER
- DEPRESSION
- STOMACH
 CANCER
- MOUTH CANCER
- THROAT CANCER
- BREAST CANCER
- LIVER CANCER



\$770M ANNUAL COST OF ALCOHOL RELATED ROAD INJURY IN QUEENSLAND

24% OF SUBSTANTIATED CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT CASES INVOLVED PARENTAL ALCOHOL MISUSE

37K HOSPITALISATIONS IN QLD DUE TO ALCOHOL ON AVERAGE PER YEAR

562 HOSPITALISATIONS IN QUEENSLAND DUE TO DRINK DRIVING

Our 5 Point Plan to reduce alcohol related harms

Section 1: Improving community safety and amenity

- 1. Retain the *Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence* policy and expand the policy to end the sale of all take-away alcohol at 10pm
- 2. Enforce responsible service of alcohol monitoring compliance checks by the Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation at point of delivery for alcohol products sold online.

Section 2: Managing availability, price and promotion

- 3. Spearhead advocacy efforts at the Ministerial Drug and Alcohol Forum to introduce a nationally consistent minimum unit price on alcohol.
- 4. Tighten advertising restrictions on government buildings and implement a complete ban immediately.

Section 3: Promoting healthier communities

5. Develop and initiate a comprehensive, evidence-based community campaign on the direct link between alcohol consumption and chronic disease including at least seven types of cancer, mental health and heart disease.

Section 1 - Improving community safety and amenity

1. Retain the Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence policy and expand the policy to end the sale of all take-away alcohol at 10pm

Following the successful implementation of the *Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence* policy, levels of alcohol-related violence in safe night precincts (SNPs) have reduced and people have reported feeling safer when enjoying the state's nightlife²⁵.

29% Average reduction 40%

 Average reduction
 400

 per month state 100

 wide in serious
 For

 assaults between 3
 S

 and 6am
 assaults

40% reduction per month in the Fortitude Valley SNP in serious assaults between 3 and 6am

29%

29% reduction in ambulance callouts in SNPs between 3 and 6am, and an 11% average reduction statewide 12%

12% reduction in hospital admissions of ocular bone fractures in greater Brisbane, and a 4% average reduction per month statewide at least one serious crime (including rape and grievous bodily harm) per week across Queensland has been solved using ID scanner data.

While the QUANTEM report shows that trading hours restrictions have successfully reduced the quantity of alcohol consumed at on-licence premises and related harms, there is still more

to be done. Over one third of Queenslanders (38%) are still experiencing the harms associated with alcohol-related violence and excessive drinking²⁶.

Pre-drinking is recognised as a contributor to the harms experienced in safe night precincts, with 83.7 per cent of people report consuming alcohol from take away outlets prior to attending pubs, clubs and bars²⁷. These harms disproportionately impact young people, who are more sensitive to the discrepancy in pricing of alcoholic products and opt for take-away liquor before entering precincts.

78.2 per cent of all alcohol purchased in Australia is bought from take away liquor outlets²⁸. This has been further amplified in 2020 by the COVID-19 pandemic, which has changed the way that many people buy and consume alcohol. One in five (20 per cent) households reported buying more alcohol than usual since the outbreak in Australia²⁹. Of those households, 70 per cent reported drinking more alcohol than usual and 32 per cent are concerned with the amount of alcohol either they or someone in their household is drinking.

56 per cent of Queenslanders support a closing time of bottle shops of no later than 10pm³⁰. The Queensland Government has taken the first step by restricting the sale of take away alcohol past 10pm for new licence applications, however many are still trading beyond this time. This excessive availability of alcohol is concerning because the evidence shows that the more available alcohol is, the higher the risk of alcohol related harms³¹.

The Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence policy should be extended to regulate these other sites of alcohol related harm. We encourage all political parties and leaders to commit to retaining the Tackling Alcohol Fuelled Violence policy and expanding the policy to end the sale of all take-away alcohol at 10pm.

2. Enforce responsible service of alcohol monitoring compliance checks by the Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation at point of delivery for alcohol products sold online.

The Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation (OLGR) notes that there are currently no monitoring compliance checks being conducted for Responsible Service of Alcohol (RSA) to private residences³².

This gap allows alcohol to potentially be delivered to underage people, those already intoxicated, or even left unattended. Unenforced, there is no way of monitoring whether online alcohol retailers are failing to meet the Responsible Service of Alcohol obligations required in their risk assessment plans³³.

Three quarters of online retailers advertise a willingness to leave alcohol unattended at an address, and 24% of Australians aged 18-24 report not having their ID checked last time they received an alcohol delivery³⁴. On top of this, alcohol delivery services and rapid alcohol delivery services (delivery within a couple hours of ordering) are more likely to be used by people who consume alcohol at risky levels³⁵. 20% of people who use a rapid alcohol delivery service receive their orders while already intoxicated³⁶.

These rapid delivery services are used by heavy drinkers to continue drinking when they run out of alcohol, enabling excessive drinking far beyond what may have been originally planned ^{37 38}. Jimmy Brings, an alcohol delivery service that boasts delivery in just 30 minutes, states

on their website, 'We never want you to call it a night because you're out of booze ever' ³⁹ – directly targeting alcohol sales to intoxicated people. It is an enforceable offence under RSA for a traditional retailer to sell alcohol to an unduly intoxicated person⁴⁰, so it is logical for the same compliance checks to be enforced for private residence delivery services.

COVID-19 restrictions – closure of venues and discouraged travel – have made these delivery services much more popular as drinking at home increases⁴¹. Online retailers have seen business spike by more than 50% since the pandemic ⁴², and polling by FARE revealed that 70% of Australians started drinking more since the COVID-19 outbreak, with more being consumed at-home and alone ⁴³.

Compliance checks have for a long time been a vital part of the RSA. With COVID-19 changing how people use alcohol, policy and safety measures need to adapt in order to reflect a changing landscape.

In order to adapt to the new ways people are buying and consuming alcohol, we urge the Queensland government to enforce OLGR RSA monitoring compliance checks at the point of delivery, to prevent the sale of alcohol to underage or unduly intoxicated persons.

Section 2 - Managing availability, price and promotion

3. Spearhead advocacy efforts at the Ministerial Drug and Alcohol Forum to introduce a nationally consistent minimum unit price on alcohol.

More than half of Australians (59%) believe that governments should ensure that alcohol products are not sold below the price of bottled water of soft drinks ⁴⁴.

Cheaper alcohol results in higher rates of consumption, including heavier drinking, occasional drinking, underage drinking and higher levels of alcohol harm. This harm affects the drinker, their partners, their children and communities, ⁴⁵ with Queenslanders paying the cost of this harm through health, police, social services and court costs.

Enabled by weaknesses in Australia's system of alcohol taxation, in particular the Wine Equalisation Tax, big-box outlets are selling high volumes of discounted and cheap bulk alcohol – the choice of Australia's heaviest drinkers and pre-loading young people ⁴⁶. Low cost alcohol disproportionately harms these groups, who are more likely to seek out cheaper alcohol than low or moderate drinkers ⁴⁷.

Pricing controls, such as minimum unit pricing (MUP), have been identified by the World Health Organisation as some of the most effective measures to reduce harm caused by alcohol. MUP effectively reduces harms among the heaviest consumers, while limiting ordinary drinkers who are consuming at a moderate or low level ⁴⁸⁴⁹.

MUP has been successfully introduced internationally with resultant reductions in alcohol related harms in countries including Scotland, Canada, Belarus, Kyrgyzstan, Moldova, Russia and Ukraine ⁵⁰⁵¹. Locally, the Northern Territory introduced MUP in October 2018 and reports assessing the impact have found reductions in alcohol-related road crashes causing injury or

fatality, assaults, ambulance attendances, emergency department presentations and episodes of protective custody⁵². This has all been achieved while having no significant impact on tourism or the number of liquor licences in the NT 53 .

A nationally consistent approach would be the most effective solution, avoiding any disparity between the states. However, as outlined in the National Alcohol Strategy 2019 – 2028, the responsibility of MUP lies with state and territory governments⁵⁴.

We therefore urge the Queensland government to spearhead advocacy for introducing a nationally consistent MUP at the Ministerial Drug and Alcohol Forum.

4. Tighten restrictions on alcohol advertising on government buildings and implement a complete ban immediately.

We applaud the Queensland government for its move to ban alcohol advertising on government buildings and government owned infrastructure. This important move acknowledges the contradiction of governments allowing alcohol advertisements on their physical sites while simultaneously promoting public health messages about the harms of alcohol.

However, information provided by the Queensland Government states that existing contracts for advertising on building won't be changed until they come up for renewal, and some are in place for 5 – 20 years⁵⁵. This includes over 2,000 government owned billboards and advertising spaces including those next to major highways, outside hospitals (such as Princess Alexandra Hospital, Queen Elizabeth II Hospital and the Prince Charles Hospital), overlooking schools and recreation spaces where weekend sport is played⁵⁶.

This decision delays the community benefits of this policy. In this period, the harms of these advertisement are both ongoing and long lasting.

Although there are regulations in place so that alcohol industry cannot directly target children and teenagers, young people inevitably see and are impacted by the advertisements placed in and around public spaces. These advertisements lead to the earlier onset of alcohol consumption in young people (often under 18), and to increased alcohol consumption if they are already consumers ⁵⁷.

In strong support of this policy, we urge the government to implement a complete ban immediately and remove all alcohol advertisements from government owned buildings and infrastructure.

SECTION 3 - Promoting healthier communities

5. Develop and initiate a comprehensive, evidence-based community campaign on the direct link between alcohol consumption and chronic disease, including at least seven types of cancer, mental health and heart disease.

Australian's in general have a poor understanding of the health risks associated with alcohol, many unaware that the amount of alcohol they are consuming is likely to cause them serious health problems in the future ⁵⁸⁵⁹. Consumption of alcohol leads to preventable deaths and is causally linked to many chronic diseases including cancer, mental health problems and heart disease ⁶⁰.

Even small quantities of alcohol consumption increases the risk of cancer, and increase in dosage leads to in increased chance of serious health issues. Despite this, 32% of Australian males believe that three or more standard drinks a day doesn't put them at risk of serious health problems, even though this is classified as a dangerously excessive amount ⁶¹. In Australia, chronic diseases resulting from alcohol consumption cause almost 4,200 deaths a year ⁶².

Social marketing can influence health behaviours and health outcomes⁶³⁶⁴⁶⁵. Developing research informed campaigns with messaging that address the factors influencing people's behaviour will create the best opportunity for success⁶⁶.

As well as targeting segments of the community who are at high risk of harm from alcohol, it is also important that parents be made aware of the serious health implications of supplying alcohol to children during their formative years of development.

Alcohol that is consumed by children can have long term, harmful impacts including damage to the developing brain impacting problem solving skills, performance at school and work as well as potentially effecting their body, mood and mental health ⁶⁷.

Consumers have a right to be accurately informed about risks associated with alcohol, just like any other products of the food and beverage industry. More than 4 in 5 Australians believe that citizens have a right to know about alcohol related health harms⁶⁸. Further, 70 per cent of Australians believe that the alcohol industry has no place in the development of alcohol policy due to their conflict of interest⁶⁹.

We urge the Queensland Government to develop and initiate a comprehensive, evidencebased community campaign founded on the latest research about the link between alcohol consumption and chronic disease.

References

¹ Australian Institute of Health and Welfare. (2020). *Alcohol, tobacco & other drugs in Australia.* <u>https://www.aihw.gov.au/reports/alcohol/alcohol-tobacco-other-drugs-australia/contents/introduction</u>

² Kippist, L. (2013, January 23). Don't drink alcohol? You're un-Australian say Gen Y. *News.com.au* <u>https://www.news.com.au/lifestyle/health/booze-integral-part-of-being-australian-say-gen-y/news-story/e50285cadd39fa19aa37bbb951e6e6bd?sv=1290f303c4167962bc7dfdc1bc80093e</u>

³ Australian Institute of Health and Welfare. (2017). *National Drug Strategy Household Survey 2016: detailed findings* (Drug Statistics series no. 31. Cat. no. PHE 214). Canberra: AIHW.

⁴ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2015). *National framework for action to prevent alcohol-related family violence*. Canberra: FARE. <u>http://fare.org.au/national-framework-for-action-to-prevent-alcohol-related-family-violence/</u>

⁵ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁶ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁷ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁸ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁹ Queensland Health. *The health of Queenslanders 208. Report of the Chief Health Officer Queensland.* Queensland Government. https://www.health.qld.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0032/732794/cho-report-2018-full.pdf

¹⁰ Miller, P., Coomber, K., Ferris, J., Burn, M., Vakidis, V., Livingston, M., Droste, N., Taylor, N., Puljevic, C., de Andrade, D., Curtis, A., Grant, K., Moayeri, F., Carah, N., Jiang, J, Wood, B., Mayshak, R., Zahow, R., Room, R., Scott, D., Cook, S., Towle, S., Regan, S., Goold, L., Mount, D., Rangiah, L., Boubouras, L., Nixon, B., Vayne, B., Baldwin, R., & Najman, J. (2019). *Queensland Alcohol-related violence and Night Time Economy Monitoring (QUANTEM): Final Report (April 2019)*. Deakin University. <u>https://www.publications.qld.gov.au/dataset/quantem-report/resource/bff18db2-8891-4532-8661-9d86f8ac0c76</u>

¹¹ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

¹² Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

¹³ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

¹⁴ Queensland Government. 2015. Drink driving discussion paper. Queensland: Department of Transport and Main Roads.

¹⁵ Laslett, AM,. Mugavin, J. Jiang. H., Manton, E., Callinan, S., MacLean, S., and Room, R. (2015). *The hidden harm: Alcohol's impact* on children and families. Canberra: Centre for Alcohol Policy Research, FARE. Queensland (2007).

¹⁶ Queensland Health. (2013). Queensland Alcohol related presentation to the Emergency Department. Statistics provided to FARE by QLD Health.

¹⁷ Australian Institute of Health and Welfare. (2016). National Drug Strategy Household Survey 2016—Supplementary Data tables: Chapter 4 Alcohol—Table 4.9.

¹⁸ World Health Organization. (2018). *Alcohol.* World Health Organization. <u>http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs349/en/</u>

¹⁹ T Babor, R Caetano, S Casswell, G Edwards, F Glesbrecht, J Grube et al. (2003). *Alcohol: no ordinary commodity*. New York: World Health Organization and Oxford University Press.

²⁰ Husain, K., Ansari, R., & Ferder, L. (2014). Alcohol-induced hypertension: Mechanism and prevention. World Journal of Cardiology, 6(5), 245–252. <u>https://doi.org/10.4330/wjc.v6.i5.245</u>

²¹ Better Health Channel. (2020). *How alcohol affects your body*. Victorian Government. <u>https://www.betterhealth.vic.gov.au/health/HealthyLiving/How-alcohol-affects-your-body</u>.

²² Cancer Australia. (2020). *Alcohol*. Australian Government. <u>https://www.canceraustralia.gov.au/publications-and-resources/position-statements/lifestyle-risk-factors-and-primary-prevention-cancer/lifestyle-risk-factors/alcohol</u>

²³ VicHealth. (2014). *Alcohol kills more than 5,500 every year new figures show*. Victorian Government. <u>https://www.vichealth.vic.gov.au/media-and-resources/media-releases/alcohol-kills-15-australians-a-day</u>.

²⁴ Queensland Government. (2018). 2018 Summary Road Crash Report, Queensland Road Fatalities. Department of Transport and Main Roads.

²⁵ Miller, P., Coomber, K., Ferris, J., Burn, M., Vakidis, V., Livingston, M., Droste, N., Taylor, N., Puljevic, C., de Andrade, D., Curtis, A., Grant, K., Moayeri, F., Carah, N., Jiang, J, Wood, B., Mayshak, R., Zahow, R., Room, R., Scott, D., Cook, S., Towle, S., Regan, S., Goold, L., Mount, D., Rangiah, L., Boubouras, L., Nixon, B., Vayne, B., Baldwin, R., & Najman, J. (2019). Queensland Alcohol-related violence and Night Time Economy Monitoring (QUANTEM): Final Report (April 2019). Deakin University. https://www.publications.qld.gov.au/dataset/quantem-report/resource/bff18db2-8891-4532-8661-9d86f8ac0c76

²⁶ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

²⁷ Miller, P., Coomber, K., Ferris, J., Burn, M., Vakidis, V., Livingston, M., Droste, N., Taylor, N., Puljevic, C., de Andrade, D., Curtis, A., Grant, K., Moayeri, F., Carah, N., Jiang, J, Wood, B., Mayshak, R., Zahow, R., Room, R., Scott, D., Cook, S., Towle, S., Regan, S., Goold, L., Mount, D., Rangiah, L., Boubouras, L., Nixon, B., Vayne, B., Baldwin, R., & Najman, J. (2019). Queensland Alcohol-related violence and Night Time Economy Monitoring (QUANTEM): Final Report (April 2019). Deakin University. https://www.publications.qld.gov.au/dataset/quantem-report/resource/bff18db2-8891-4532-8661-9d86f8ac0c76

²⁸ Euromonitor International (2019). Alcoholic drinks in Australia. Euromonitor International Ltd London.

²⁹ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2020). *Alcohol Sales & Use During COVID-19*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/COVID-19-POLL.pdf</u>

³⁰ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2017). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2017: Attitudes and behaviours*. FARE. <u>http://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-ANNUAL-ALCOHOL-POLL-2017-REPORT-FINAL_DIGITAL.pdf</u>

³¹ Morrison, C., & Smith, K. (2015). *Disaggregating relationships between off-premise alcohol outlets and trauma*. Canberra: Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education.

³² Office of Liquor and Gaming Regulation (2020). Information provided to Drug ARM on responsible service of alcohol at 10 September 2020.

³³ Office of Liquor and Gaming. (2020). *Types of liquor and wine licences*. Queensland Government. <u>https://www.business.qld.gov.au/industries/hospitality-tourism-sport/liquor-gaming/liquor/licensing/applications/types</u> ³⁴ VicHealth. (2020). *On-demand alcohol delivery services and risky drinking*. Victorian Government. https://www.vichealth.vic.gov.au/media-and-resources/publications/alcohol-delivery-risky-drinking

³⁵ VicHealth. (2020). *On-demand alcohol delivery services and risky drinking*. Victorian Government. <u>https://www.vichealth.vic.gov.au/media-and-resources/publications/alcohol-delivery-risky-drinking</u>

³⁶ VicHealth. (2020). *On-demand alcohol delivery services and risky drinking*. Victorian Government. https://www.vichealth.vic.gov.au/media-and-resources/publications/alcohol-delivery-risky-drinking

³⁷ Alcohol and Drug Foundation. (2020). Online alcohol delivery – cause for concern. ADF. <u>https://adf.org.au/insights/online-alcohol-delivery/</u>

³⁸ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Rapid alcohol delivery services ramp up risk of harm*. FARE. <u>http://fare.org.au/rapid-alcohol-delivery-services-ramp-up-risk-of-harm/</u>

³⁹ Jimmy Brings. (2020). Alcohol delivery Brisbane. Jimmy Brings. <u>https://jimmybrings.com.au/brisbane/</u>

⁴⁰ Liquor Act 1992 (Qld).

⁴¹ Australian Drug Foundation (2020). Online alcohol delivery – cause for concern. ADF <u>https://adf.org.au/insights/online-alcohol-</u> <u>delivery/</u>

⁴² Waters, C. (2020, April 13). 'Running a million miles an hour': Online alcohol sales soar. *The Sydney Morning Herald*. <u>https://www.smh.com.au/business/small-business/running-a-million-miles-an-hour-online-alcohol-sales-soar-20200407-p54hx3.html</u>

⁴³ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2020). *Alcohol Sales & Use During COVID-19*. FARE <u>http://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/COVID-19-POLL.pdf</u>

⁴⁴ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁴⁵ Babor, T. (2010). Alcohol, No Ordinary Commodity: Research and public policy (2nd ed.). Oxford University Press.

⁴⁶ The Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2017). *The Price is Right: Setting a Minimum Unit Price on Alcohol in the Northern Territory*. FARE. <u>https://fare.org.au/the-price-is-right-setting-a-floor-price-on-alcohol-in-the-northern-territory/</u>

⁴⁷ Holmes, J., Meng, Y., Meier, P. S., Brennan, A., Angus, C., Campbell-Burton, A., Guo, Y., Hill-McManus, D., & Purshouse, R. C. (2014). Effects of minimum unit pricing for alcohol on different income and socioeconomic groups: a modelling study. *The Lancet*, 383(9929), 1655-1664.

⁴⁸ World Health Organization.(2010). Global strategy to reduce the harmful use of alcohol. World Health Organization.

⁴⁹ World Health Organization Europe. (2014). European status report on alcohol and health 2014: Pricing policies. https://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/disease-prevention/alcohol-use/policy/10-action-areas-of-the-european-action-planto-reduce-the-harmful-use-of-alcohol-20122020/pricing-policies/european-status-report-on-alcohol-and-health-2014.-pricingpolicies

⁵⁰ Stockwell, T., Auld, M., Zhao, J., & Martin, G. (2012) Does minimum pricing reduce alcohol consumption? The experience of a Canadian province. *Addiction*, *107*(5), 912-20.

⁵¹ Stockwell T, Zhao J, Martin G, Macdonald S, Vallance K, Treno A, et al. (2013). Minimum alcohol prices and outlet densities in British Columbia, Canada: estimated impacts on alcohol-attributable hospital admissions. *American Journal of Public Health*, 103(11):2014-20. ⁵² Coomber K, Miller P, Taylor N, Livingston M, Smith J, Buykx P, et al. Investigating the introduction of the alcohol minimum unit price in the Northern Territory: Final report. Geelong: Deakin University; 2020.

⁵³ Coomber K, Miller P, Taylor N, Livingston M, Smith J, Buykx P, et al. (2020). *Investigating the introduction of the alcohol minimum unit price in the Northern Territory: Final report.* Deakin University.

⁵⁴ Department of Health. (2019). National Alcohol Strategy 2019-2028. Australian Government. https://www.health.gov.au/sites/default/files/documents/2019/12/national-alcohol-strategy-2019-2028.pdf

⁵⁵ Queensland Government (2020). Information provided to Australian Medical Association Qld on advertising bans.

⁵⁶ Queensland Government (2020). Information provided to Australian Medical Association Qld on advertising bans.

⁵⁷ Roche, A.M., Bywood, P.T., Borlagdan, J., Lunnay, B., Freeman, T., Lawton, L., Tovell, A. & Nicholas, R. (2007). Young People and Alcohol: The Role of Cultural Influences. National Centre for Education and Training on Addiction.

⁵⁸ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁵⁹ Australian Institute of Health and Welfare. (2017). *National Drug Strategy Household Survey 2016: detailed findings* (Drug Statistics series no. 31. Cat. no. PHE 214). Canberra: AIHW.

⁶⁰ National Institute of Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism. (2020). *Alcohol Facts and Statistics*. NIAAA. <u>https://www.niaaa.nih.gov/publications/brochures-and-fact-sheets/alcohol-facts-and-statistics</u>

⁶¹ Australian Institute of Health and Welfare. (2017). *National Drug Strategy Household Survey 2016: detailed findings* (Drug Statistics series no. 31. Cat. no. PHE 214). Canberra: AIHW.

⁶² Australian Bureau of Statistics. (2017). *Deaths due to harmful alcohol consumption in Australia*. Australian Government. https://www.abs.gov.au/ausstats/abs@.nsf/Lookup/by%20Subject/3303.0~2017~Main%20Features~Deaths%20due%20to%20ha rmful%20alcohol%20consumption%20in%20Australia~4

⁶³ Cheng, H., Kotler, P., & Lee, N. (2011). Social marketing for public health : global trends and success stories. Jones and Bartlett. http://samples.jbpub.com/9780763757977_CH01_final.pdf

⁶⁴ Griffiths, J., Blair-Stevens, C., & Thorpe, A. (2008). Social marketing for health and specialised health promotion: Stonger together – weaker apart. Royal Society for Public Health: National Social Marketing Centre. https://www.rsph.org.uk/static/uploaded/7996f2d5-ec7e-45ab-9e5b5c4ec7c40d80.pdf

⁶⁵ Firestone, R., Rowe, C., Modi, S., & Sievers, D. (2017). The effectiveness of social marketing in global health: a systematic review. *Health Policy and Planning*, *32*(1), 110–124. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/heapol/czw088</u>

⁶⁶ VicHealth. (2016) The changing face of social marketing. Victorian Government. <u>https://www.vichealth.vic.gov.au/search/the-</u> <u>changing-face-of-social-marketing</u>

⁶⁷ Department of Health. Alcohol and the developing brain. Government of Western Australia. https://healthywa.wa.gov.au/Articles/F_I/Information-for-parents-alcohol-and-the-developingbrain#:~:text=Alcohol%20can%20affect%20your%20child%27s%20brain%20which%20continues%20to%20develop,body%2C%20m ood%20and%20mental%20health.

⁶⁸ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>

⁶⁹ Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (2019). *Annual Alcohol Poll 2019*. FARE <u>https://fare.org.au/wp-content/uploads/FARE-Annual-Alcohol-Poll-2019-FINAL.pdf</u>



QCAA 2020 QUEENSLAND ELECTION PLATFORM

Authorised by J Najman. 493A Ipswich Rd, Annerley QLD 4103